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Independent Audiiors Report

To the Members of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audlL
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BS R &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 39 (vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 39 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with requirements of
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

the Implementation Guide on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting softwares
except the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level
to log any direct data changes for one accounting software used for maintaining the books of
accounts relating to purchases, payables and inventory management. Further, for the periods
where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the respective accounting
softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

Jpshett

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 18 June 2024 ICAI UDIN:24114583BKFQMB9576
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(@

(i) ()

(iii)

(b)

©

(@

(e)

(b)

(@)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year ended 2022-2023. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between
the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each
class of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or provided any
guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to its fellow subsidiaries and advances in
the nature of loan to employees during the year in respect of which the requisite information is
as below. The Company has not granted any unsecured loans or advances in the nature of
loans to firms, limited liability partnership during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to fellow subsidiaries and advance in nature of
loans to employees as below;

A
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BSR &Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

©

()

(iv)

Particulars Loans (Rs. in Advances in nature of
Millions) loans (Rs. in Millions)

Aggregate amount during the year
Fellow Subsidiaries 605 -
Employees - 0.05

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date

Fellow Subsidiaries 1,205 -
Employees - 0.08

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in
the nature of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, loans given to fellow subsidiaries is repayable on demand and
advances in nature of loans given to employees (as per the policy of the Company is interest
free), schedule of repayment is stipulated. As informed to us, the Company has not demanded
repayment of loans from fellow subsidiaries during the year. The payment of principal and
interest have been regular where applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment except for the following loans to its related parties as defined in Clause (76)
of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):.

Related Parties (Rs. in Millions)

Aggregate of loans
- Repayable on demand (A) 1,205

Percentage of loans 99.99%

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 of tpy
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

Act in respect of loans covered by the said section. The Company has not provided guarantee
or security to which provisions of Sections 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply. According to
the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect
of the loans given, guarantees provided, securities given are not applicable to the Company,
since it is covered as Company engaged in business of providing infrastructural facilities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no investment made by the
Company and accordingly, Section 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(V) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the goods sold
and services rendered by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a)

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Duty of
Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

(viii)

(ix) (a)

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where | Remarks,
statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is if any
Millions) amount pending
relates
Finance Act, | Service Tax | 11.16 1 April 2012 | Customs
1994 to 30 June | Excise and
2017 Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any ]end%
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(9 (@)

(b)

() (a)

(b)

©

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of lndL@\
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

()

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

()

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of
clause 3(vi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash loss in the current financial year and has incurred cash
loss of Rs. 159.68 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

SEEXTE

Jaymin Sheth

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 18 June 2024 ICAI UDIN:24114583BKFQMB9576
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Chanakya
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of ﬁnancl;l\
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

EEE

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 18 June 2024 ICAI UDIN:24114583BKFQMB9576
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 Marceh 2023
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property. plant and equipment 3(a) 17.750.82 17.832.10
Capital work-in-progress 3c) 19.40 2541
Goodwill (d) 527.57 52157
Other intangible assets i(b) 323 4.01
Financial assets

(i) Others financial assets 5(a) 339.16 155,98
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 - -
Other non-current assets 8{a) 288.88 270.58
Total non-current assets 18.929.06 18.815.65
Current assets

Inventories 9 82.08 74.17
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 10 94.43 106.81
{11) Cash and cash equivalents 11 52.33 289.20
(1ii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 12 191.52 118.28
{iv) Loans 4 1.205.00 600.00
{v) Other financial assets 5(h) 107.75 13.74
Current tax assets (net) ) 49,56 1333
Other current assets 8(b) 119.89 123.11
Total current assets 1.902.56 1.338.64
TOTAL ASSETS 20.831.62 20.154.29

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 13 574.23 574.23
Other equity

(i) Equity component of compound financial instruments 14 1.160.25 876.59
(i) Reserves and Surplus 14 1,671.69 2,051.63
Total equity 3.406.17 3.502.45

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(1) Borrowings 15(a) 15.196.09 15,610.29
(ii) Other financial liabilities 16(a) 0.25 63.31
Provisions 17(a} 14.76 8.77
Total non- current liabilities 15.211.10 15,682.37

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Bomowings 15(b) 1.513.41 426.12
(i) Trade payables 18
a) total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 15.12 16.65
b) total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small emterprises 377.92 260.45
(1ii) Other financial liabilities 16(b) 77.48 32.73
Other current liabilities 19 226.12 232,52
Provisions 17(b) 4.30 1.00
Total current liabilities 2.214.35 969.47
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20.831.62 20.154.29
Material accounting policies 1-2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 1-40

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the hoEIﬁ of directors of
Chartered Accountants Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Firm Registration No: 101248W /'W-100022 “IN: USS PTC347362 K
S

H:Shetd

Jaymin Sheth
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Anupam Dasgupta

Partier Director Director
Membership Number. 114583 DIN: 09497530 DIN: 07091941
Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 June 2024 Date: 18 June 2024 Date: 18 June 2024



SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupces in millions)

For the year ended 31 March

For the year ended 31 March

Particulars Note 2024 2023

income

Revenue from operations 20 2.959.98 2.307.80
Other income 21 143.75 79.65
Total income 3,103.73 2.387.45
Expenses

Consumption of food and beverages 22 211.80 186.63
Employee benefils expense 23 462.73 391.94
Finance costs 24 1,588.81 1.413.81
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 183.27 180.10
Other expenses 26 1.033.93 §48.18
Total expenses 3.480.54 3.020.66
{Loss) before tax (376.81) (633.21)
Tax expense

- Current tax - -

- Deferred tax charge = (credit) - -
(Loss) after tax !376,8!) (633_2“
Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans. net of tax (3.13) 2.88
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax 3.13) 2.88
Total comprehensive (loss) for the vear 979.94) (630.33)
Earning per equity share (in rupees) 28

Basic eamnings per share (Face value Rs.10 each) {3.39) (11L.03)
Diluted eamings per share (Face value Rs.10 each) (3.39) (11.03)
Material accounting policies 1-2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 140

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W W-100022

J-H-5le

Jaymin Sheth
Partuer
Membership Number: 1 14383

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 June 2024

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited
CIN: US5100DL2019PTC347362

DIN: 09497530

Place: Delhi

Date: 18 June 2024

Sougata Kundu
Direcior
DIN: 07091941

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 June 2024



SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended 31
March 2024

For the vear ended 31
March 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax for the year

Adjusiments for

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Finance costs

Net loss on disposal of propertv. plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange differences

Provision for doubtful debts

Interest income

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Working capital movements:
Decrease in loans

(Increase) in inventories

(Increase) in trade receivables
(Increase) Decrease in other assets
Decrease in other financial assets
Increase in trade pavables

{Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase’ (Decrease) in other liabilities
Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid. net

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipments including capital work in progress
including capital advances

Proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment

Inter corporate deposit given to related parties

Interest received

Investments in bank deposits

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
(Repayments) of long-tern borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings
(Repayments) of short-term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+(C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance with banks
- in current accounts
- in deposit accounts with original matusity of less than three months
Total cash and cash equivalenis (Refer note 11)

Notes:

(376.81) (633.21)
183.27 180.10
1,588.81 1.413.81
105 -
2.04) =
16.44 i
(129.32) (49.93)
1.281.40 910.77
- 6.02
(7.90) (13.88)
(@.07) (69.74)
(4.61) 96.86
1.95 .99
115.93 103.01
(20.10) (31.88)
(6.41) 49.63
6.17 3.56
1.362.36 105534
(36.22) (4.70)
1.326.14 1.050.64
(106.73) (79.36)
= 412
(605.00) (600.00)
34.70 4315
(255.69) (76.90)
(932.72) (708.99)
- 185.38
(165.75) (192.69)
665.50 i
5 (6.19)
(1,130.04) (1.120.38)
(630.29) (1.133.88)
(236.87) (792.23)
289.20 1.081.43
5233 289.20
170 1.04
50.63 49.26
< 238.90
52.33 289.20

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method™ as set out in the Ind AS 7. 'Statement of Cashflow” notiifed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act. 2013 read together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021,

The notes referred to above fonm an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even dale attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No: 101248WW-100022

It

Jaymin Sheth
Parmer
Membership Number 114583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 June 2024

For and on behalf of the board o[diret;m{tjr

Schloss Chanakya Private Linited

DIN: 09497530

Place: Delhi
Date: 18 June 2024

CIN: US5100DL2019PTC3

Sougata Kundu
Direcror
DIN: 07091941

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 June 2024



SCHLOSS CHANAKY A PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

A. Equity share capital

{Rupees in millions)

Particulars Note Amount
Asat 1 April 2022 57423
Changes in equity share capital 13 -
As at 31 March 2023 574.23
Changes in equity share capital 13 -
As at 31 March 2024 574.23
B. Other equity

{Rupees in millions)

Equity cony of | Reserves and Surplus | Total
compound financial

Particulars Note instruments Securities premium Retained earnings
Asat 1 April 2022 876.39 5033.72 (2,351.76) 3,558.55
(Loss) for the vear o = (63321) (633.21)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - 288 2.88
Total comprehensive (loss) for the vear 5 - (630.33) (630.33)
Dividend - - - -
Asart 31 March 2023 876.59 5,033.72 (2.982.09) 2,928.22
{Loss) for the year {37681 (376.81)
Other comprehensive (loss), net of tax - (3.13) (3.13)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year 14 - - (379.94) (379.94)
Gain on account of modification in the terms of 283.66 - - 283.66
compound financial instruments
As at 31 March 2024 14 L.160.25 503372 (3,362.03) 2.831.94

The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial slatements.
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: [01248W/W-100022

JHEeedl

Jaymin Sheth
Pariner
Membership Number:1 14383

Place: Mumbai
Date: [8 June 2024

For and on behalf of the board of directgrs of
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited /.r.
CIN: U33100DL2019P T

Place: Dellu
Date: I8 June 2024

7362

Sougata Kundu
Director
DIN: 07091941

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 June 2024




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

1

22

Company information

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (“the Company™) an Indian subsidiary of BSREP III India Ballet I Pte. Ltd.. holding company. was incorporated on 18
March 2019 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring Delhi hotel undertaking of HLV
Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name of "THE LEELA".

Basis of preparation, critical acc ing esti and judgs material ting policies and recent accounting pronouncements

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements,

Rounding of amounts :
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule I11. unless otherwise
enecified

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2021 and other provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") as amended from
time to time. The financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees in millions.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and accompanying disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the vears presented. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to:

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The Company has estimated useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the
asset. past history of replacement. anticipated technological changes. etc. The Company reviews the useful life of property. plant and equipment and intangible
assets as at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. Refer Note 3 for further details.

- Impairment testing:

Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation amortisation are tested for impairment periodically including when events
occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of
cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which
includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future
economic and market conditions. Refer Note 3 for further details.

- Income Taxes:

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realised. The Company estimates
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, busi plans. including m “s expectations regarding the
manner and timing of recovery of the related assets, Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax
assets and thereby the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer Note 34 for further details.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case laws and the potential outcomes of tax audits and
appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the
valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer note 34 for further details.

- Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit

method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of the ‘gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets are
deducted. Refer note 27 for further details.

- Contingent liabilities:

The management evaluates possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. The estimates of outcome and financial effect are determined by the judgement of
the management of the entity. supplemented by experience of similar transactions and. in some cases, reports from independent experts. Refer note 35 for
further details.

- Fair Value Measurement of Derivative and other Financial Instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant judgements
in the selection of a method in making assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date and in identifying the most
appropriate estimate of fair value when a wide range of fair value measurements are possible. Refer Note 33 for further details.
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

23

24

2.6

a)

Going Concern .
The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 376.81 millions during the year ended 31 March 2024, has accumulated losses of Rs. 3.362.03 millions and positive net
worth of Rs. 3,406.17 millions at 31 March 2024 and as of that date. the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 311.9 millions,

Based on the initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations.

The Company has assessed its capital and financial resources, profitability and overall liquidity position. In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to
the future uncertainties in the economic conditions, the Company as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources
of information and based on current estimates. expects to recover the carrying amounts of assets.

In view of the above, along with financial support from its shareholders. the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and
liabilities as and when they fall due in near future and accordingly. these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Current / Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current,

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a 1t 1s expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in. the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date: or

d. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months afier the reporting date.
Current assets include the current portion of assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a 1t is expected to be settled in the entity’s normal operaring cycle;

b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c. it is due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date: or

d. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty. result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and Labilines

Basis of Preparation

Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the following-

(a) certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration is measured at fair value
(b} defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on 18 June 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition and other income:

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
orservices to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of
Indirect taxes, returns and discounts,

Income from operations-

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets: Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes
room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied. food and beverages are sold and banquet
services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

Other Allied services: In relation to laundry income, communication income, health club income, airport transfers income and other allied services, the
revenue has been recognised bv reference to the time of service rendered.

Some contracts include multiple performance obligations, such as sale of food and beverages and room revenue. These are considered as separate performance
obligations as. the customer can benefit from the good or service on its own and the good or services are distinct within the context of the contract. Where the
contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling
prices.

A contract asset viz. Unbilled revenue is recognized in respect of those performance obligations where the control of the goods has been transferred to the
buyer, and only the act of invoicing is pending,

A contract liability is recognised where the customer has paid in advance. but the services are vet to be rendered by the Company or the payment exceeds the

services rendered. A deferred revenue is recognised for revenue where performance obligations under the sales contract are to be satisfied.
The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by

the customer exceeds one vear. As a consequence, the company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Space and Shop rentals: Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails and office at the properties. Revenue is
recognised over the tenure of the lease/service agreement on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. except where the rentals are structured to increase
in line with expected general inflation. and except where there is uncertainty of ultimate collection.

Interest: Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding using effective interest rate applicable.
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

b)  Employee benefits:
Short term employment benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salary,
wages and bonus, short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
(including compensated absences) expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period of
rendering of service by the employee.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least
twelve months afier the reportine date.
Defined contribution plans:
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Defined benefit plans
(Post-employment benefit)
The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately
to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation
under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation results in a potential asset
for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan ("the asset ceiling”).

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obli

tion and the fair value of plan assets.

Other long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences beyond twelve months and utilise it in future service periods or
received cash compensation on termination of employment. The Company records obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit
method. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the Tiability is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit & loss.

¢)  Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accurnulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties and non-
refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended use.
Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included if there is an obligation to restore it.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.
Depreciation is charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method, as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 except in
respect of the following categories of assets. in whose case the life of the assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset. the operating conditions of the asset. past history of replacement, anticipated technological
changes, manufacturers” warranties and maintenance support. etc

The useful lives have been determined as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of
the original cost of the asset.
Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life as per Schedule II (in vears) Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in vears)
Buildings 60 years 60 vears

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 years to 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years

Office equipments 5 years Not Applicable

Computers 3 years Not Applicable

Data processing units 6 years Not Applicable

Vehicles 6 years Not Applicable

Freehold land is not depreciated. The assets™ useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of any changes in estimates
are accounted for on a prospective basis. An item of property. plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property. plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property. plant and equipment recognised as of March 18,
2019 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date,

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are not vet ready for thetr intended use and are carried at cost
determined as aforesaid.
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

d) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment Josses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful economic life
and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. The estimated useful Jife used for amortising for intangible
assets is as under:

Class of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Computer Software 6 vears

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset. measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Goodwill
Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill attributable to the acquisition of Delhi hotel undertaking of HLV Limited is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually. or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount. the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of March 18, 2019 (transition
date} measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

e) Leases
i. Asa lessee
On inception of a contract. the Company assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The right 1o use the asset and the obligation under the lease to make payments are recognised
n the Company’s statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

Right of use assets

The right-of- use asset recognised at lease commencement includes the amount of lease liability recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s estimated
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assels are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease labilities and are subject to impairment testing. Residual
value is reassessed annually.

Lease Liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including “in-substance fixed" payments) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. less any lease incentives receivable, and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease. ‘In-substance fixed” payments are payments that
may. in form. contain variability but that, in substance. are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease pavments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination
options where the Company is reasonably certain that it will not exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include exercise price a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for lease payments made. In addition.
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change m the “in-substance fixed" lease payments or
as a result of a rent review or change in the relevant index or rate.

Variable lease

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period over which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

The Company has opted not to apply the lease accounting model to leases of low-value assets or leases which have a lease term of 12 months or less and don’t
contain purchase option. Costs associated with such leases are recognised as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term,

ii. As a lessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

iii. Classification of lease

To classify each lease the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the underlving asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease. if not, it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment. the Company considers
certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset

f)  Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation’depreciation and goodwill are reviewed for impairment periodically including whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
tisks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified. corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units. or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

9% a edyced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When an impairment
In!ﬂu‘m ¢. the carrying amount of the asset (or a cashgenerating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
S &l Badming a nt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
ﬁ%{%‘#rﬁ%ﬂg uniY) in pyipr vears. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent that it
Rﬁﬂiamfgf'imai ment 1b&s which has been recognised for the asset in prior years.
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g

h)

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee,

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future 1s considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses)

(iii) Subsequent measurement
Foreign currency transactions subsequently are accounted using the exchange rates as at that date and difference. if any. between the exchange rates as at the
subsequent date and the date of the balance sheet is recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a weighted average basis) or net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable). inward freight and other expenditure

directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in
which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current Tax

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability
payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the
prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill. an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at
the time of the transaction and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the lability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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1]

k)

m)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a binding present obligation. This may be either legal because it derives from a contract, legislation or other
operation of law. or constructive because the Company created valid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record
such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount
of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision and the indicated time range of the outflow of economic benefits are the best estimate (most probable
outcome) of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Non-Current provisions are discounted for giving the effect of time value of money.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.
Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifving assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear
adjusting the bonus element for all the reported period arising on account of issue of equity shares on rights and including potential equity shares on
compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit  (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic eamings per share adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the
conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

Financial instruments

(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (erther through other comprehensive mcome, or through profit or loss). and

+ those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(ii) Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase or sale the
financial asset.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition. the company measures a financial asset at its fair value (trade receivable is measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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m)

Financial instruments (Continued)

-Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the Company's classifies its debt instruments:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit and loss,

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets.
where the assets” cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI. except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss.
‘When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC1 is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate hne item in statement of profit and loss.

« Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVYOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

-Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses
on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain' (losses) in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
Trade and other receivables

A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
‘method. less loss allowance.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible debentures denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the
option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value. The liability component of compound
financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently. Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it
qualified for inclusion in the cost of an asset). On conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

Classification & measurement of financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. If payment is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current liabilities. If not. they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities if the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
statement of financial position date. If not, they are presented under current borrowings.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

IND as 109 requires an entity to determine whether the present value of the new cash flows under the new terms is at least 10% different from the present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original liability, using the original effective interest rate. If the difference is 10% or greater, the existing liability is de-
recognised and a new financial liability is recognised.

An entity has an accounting policy choice: either it can apply only the quantitative 10% test (described above): or, if the 10% test is passed. it could choose to
also perform a qualitative assessment for de-recognition. If the 10% test is failed. however. the existing liability is de-recognised, regardless of whether the
entity’s policy is to also perform a qualitative analysis

The chosen accounting policy should be applied consistently and disclosed.

Qualitative analysis

Determining whether the terms are substantially different, from a qualitative perspective, is judgemental and will depend on the specific facts and circumstances
of each case.

Changes to the terms of the liability might be significant. on a qualitative basis, if they significantly affect the economic risks of the liability. Alternatively. the
substance of the modification might be that the existing liability is prepaid/settled and a new liability has been issued.

Qualitative factors include. but are not limited to, the following:

A change in the currency in which the liability is denominated.

A change in the interest basis (such as a change from fixed rate to floating rate. or vice versa).

A change in any conversion features in the instrument,

A substantial change in covenants.

The liability was prepayable at par, with no significant penalty at the date of the renegotiation, which results in the renegotiated rate approximating the current
market rate of interest for the new terms and conditions.

The liability was close to its maturity date at the date of the renegotiation and was extended for a significant additional period, which results in the renegotiated

Derecognition of financial asset & financial liabilities

A financial asset (or, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized when:

(i) The contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire. or

(i) The Company transfers the financial assets or its right to receive cash flow from the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party.

A financial liability (or. a part of financial liability) is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Gain or loss on derecognition
Gain or los; ecognition of a financial asset or liability measured at amortised cost is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income at the time of

Nesco Center,
3 applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from
. The expecied credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in a provision
ot being equity instruments or debt instruments measured subsequently at FVTPL) the expected credit losses are measured
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n)

0)

P

q)

Offsetting of financial asset and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet where Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax for the vear is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand. deposits held at call with financial institutions,

other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current Habilities in the balance sheet,

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations. regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are. with limited exceptions. measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred as excess of the-

+ consideration transferred;

- amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

+ acquisihion-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired. the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of
the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity
as capital reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred. the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate. being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages. the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.

New Standards or Other A dments Issued but not yet Effective:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective 1 April, 2023:

a Ind AS | - Pi 1on of Financial St

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.

b. Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

Disclosures — Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments shall be disclosed as part of matenial accounting policy
information.

c. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company
is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements,

d. Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are

“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertamnty” Entities develop accounting estimates 1f
accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(All amounts in Ir

5

Stu)

S(b)

ian rupees. lions, unless otherwise stated)

Loans at amortised cost
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated

Particulars 31 Marceh 2024 31 March 2023
Luans to related parties (Refer Note 36) 1,205.00 600.00
1.205.00 600.00

Loans or advances fo related parties;

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Type of Borrower

'“'“if‘"'”f_"""l"“' % oftotal Lowns and | Amountof loanor | % of the total Louns and
advanet WL ) A gvances in the nature of | advance in the nature of | Advances iu the nature of|

nature of loan i

% loans loan outstanding loans
outstanding

Related Parties * 1.205.00 100% 60000 100%

* Related parties with common directors
The Company's fellow subsidiaries chloss Bangalore Private Limited and Schloss HMA Private Limited have svailed deposits from the Company, for a total of Rs 1,
Year Rs 600 millions) to meet working capital requirements and it 1s repayable on den

05 mitlions (Previous

Other financial assets

Non-current financial assets

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Margin money deposits 7130 7126
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 259.08 76.67
Security deposits

Considered good- Unsecured 878

339.16

Note-

(1) Security deposits are primarily on account of ufi
(if) Out of total margin money depasits, bank deposits amounting ta Rs. 711,82 Mn represents bank depasits made with bank which is given as a guarantee 1o Ministry of Environment and Forests
(MOEF) for the liability incurned towands environmental elearance. (Refir Note 31)

¢ deposits and rental agreements. Seeurty deposits given to related parties amounts to Nil

Current financial assets
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
To related parties (Refer Note 36)
Interest receivable 93.54 0.1
To other than related parties:
Security deposits
Considered good- Unsecured 0.33 0.96
Advances 1o employees 0.08 0.06
Interest accrued on hank deposits 13.80 12.54
107.75 13.74
6 Deferred tax assets {(pet)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The components of deferred tax balances are as follows
(4} Deferred tax assers
Avising an account of timing differences in.
Provision for emplovee benefits 495 2.54
Bormowings 93.39 92.01
Unabsorbed depreciation - business loss (Refer Note below) 107.44 36941
(hers 8.12 345
213.50 467.41
(B) Deferred sax liability
Arising on accownt of timing diffe
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures i 176.41
Excess of depreciation  amrtisation on property, plant and equipment under 213.53 170.04
income tax laws over depreciation . amortisation provided in the books
Intangible assets including Goodwill 0.37 120.96
21390 467.41

Deferred tax assets (net) = (A)-(B) = —

Note:
In the abscnce of reasonable certainty, Deferred Tax Asset on sccount of unabsorbed depreciation - business loss has been recoguised 1o the extent it can be realised against reversal of defermed tx
Tiability




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Confinucd)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

7 Current tax assets (net)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance tax and tax deducted at source [net of provision of tax: Nil (31 March 2023 Nil )] 49.56 13.33

49.56 13.33
8 Other assets
8(a)  Other non-current asseis

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 17.79 7.31
Prepard expenses 9.90 2.30
Balances with government authorities* 261.19 260.97
Total 288.88 270.58

“Balance with government authorities 1o the extent of Rs. 260.34 Mn represents advance given 1o New Delhi Municipal Council (NDMC) for Floor Area Ratio (FAR) and Zonal Average Auction Rate
(ZAAR) matter which 1s ongomg before the court. (Refer Note 35)

8(h)  Other current assets

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Unsecured. considered good

Advance 10 supplias 1741 11.54

Prepaid expenses 48.33 33.83

Balances with government authorities 46.33 3731

Unbillad revenue 1.82 40.43
119.89 123.11

9 Inventories

(vaiued at cost ar Net realisable value whichever is lower)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 ]

Food and beverages 55.92 42.96

Stores and operating supplics 26.16 an

82.08 74.17

The amount of Inventories pledged as securities for hiabilities (Refer Note 15 - Borrowings)

10 Trade receivables

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured. considered good

Recervables from related parties (Refer Note 36) 4.1 0.40
Trade recaivables- other than rélated panics 113.77 113.42
Less Loss allowance (23.45) (7.01)
Total receivables 94.43 106.81
Note:

(1) Trade receivables are non-mterest bearing and are generally on pavment terms of 010 20 days.
(i1) No trade or other recaivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company ether severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other recavable are due from finns or private
companies respectively 1 which any director is a panier, a director or a member except as disclosed m note 36

(i) For related party balances refer Note 36

14th Floot,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing
Nesco IT Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East).
Mumbai - 400 063




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables (Continued)

As at31 March 2024

Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 More than 3 Total
1 -2 years 2 -3 years
months year years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 88.95 548 - - 2 94.43
(1) Undisputed Trade recenable — credit impaired 4.50 4.31 7.28 347 190 2345

(iii) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

() Disputed Trade receivables — which have sigmificant nerease in credit risk - - - - - -
Less: provision for doubtful debts (4.50) 431 (7.28) (3.47) (3.90) (23.45)
Total 88.95 5.48 - - - 94.43

Asat31 March 2023

‘Quistanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 More than 3 Total
1-2vears 2-3 years
months vear s years
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 97.25 743 2.13 - - 106.81
(i) Undisputed Trade recenvable — credit imparred - - 13 1.14 2.74 7.01

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - r =
(1) Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit nisk - & = -
Less: provision for doubtful debts - - (3.13) (1.14) (2.74) (7.01)
Total 97.25 7.43 2.13 - - 106.81

14th Floor,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing,
Nesco IT Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East).
Mumbai - 400 063




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

11

a)

b)

€}

d)

e}

2

Cash and cash cquivalents

Particulars

31 March 2024

[

31 March 2023

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
= N curreant accounts
= in deposit accounts with onginal matunity of less than three months

Note:

170 104
50.63 49.26
- 238.90
5233 289.20

Cash and bank balances are denominated and held i Indian Rupees and the balance with banks mentioned above is of unrestricted nature

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

[ 3iMarch2024

31 March2023 |

Other bank balances
- in deposut accounts with onginal matunty of more than 3 months but matunity less
than 12 months*

191.52 118.28
191.52 118.28

*Fixerd Deposits amounting 1o Rs 191.52 Mn (31 March 2023, Nil) has been pledgad against Overdrafi facilitics availed during the year

*Fixed Deposits amountng to Rs 912 Mn (31 March 2023 Nil} has been isssual

Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised
65,500,000 (31 March 2023 63,500,000 cquity shares of Rs 10 cach 655.00 655.00

655.00 655.00
Issued. subscribed and paid up
57.423,076 (31 March 2023- 57.423,076) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up 574.23 574.23

574.23 574.23
Reconciliation of shares outstanding and amount at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Parisculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

At the beginming of the year 57423076 574,23 5.7423.076 57423
Shares 1ssued during the year = = g =
At the end of the year 5.74.23.076 574.23 5.74.23,076 574.23

Rights. preference and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has & single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all aquity shares rank qually with regard to dividends and share i the Company s residual assets The equity shares are entitled to

receive dividend as declared from time 1o time. The voting rights of an equity sharcholder on a poll (not show of hands) are m proportion to s share of the pmd-up equity capual of the Company

On winding up of the Company. the holders of equity shares will he entitled 10 receve the residual assets of the Company

Shares held by holding company / intermediate holding company

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
BSREP 111 India Ballet I Pte. Ltd.. holding company 5.74.23.075 574.23 5.74.23.075 574.23
BSREP I1I India Ballat Pte Ltd.. imermediate holding company 1 0.00 1 0.00
5.74.23.076 574.23 5.74.23.076 574.23
Details of shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
o 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
BSREP 11l India Ballat | Pte Lud 5.74.23.075 99.99% 5.74.23.075 99.99%
5.74.23.075 99.99% 5.74.23.075 99.99%

Company has not issued any bonus shares, shares for consideration other than cash and neither bought back any shares from the date of incorporation

Terms of any securities convertible into equity
Refer Note 15(C)(a) for terms of conversion of Compulsonily Convatible Debentures

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Particulars

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

BSREP 11l India Ballet | Pie. Lid.. holding company 5.74.23.074 99.99% -
BSREP 111 Incha Ballt Pre Lid.. intermediate holdmg company 1 0.01% =
5.74.23.075 100.00% -

31 March 2024

Change in % Holding

No. of shares % of Holding

Particulars

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

BSREP Il India Ballet | Pre. Lid.. holding company 5.74.23.075 99.99% -
BSREP III India Balld Pte Lud.. intermexdiate holdimg company 1 0.01% -
5.74.23.076 100.00% -

31 March 2023

Change in % Holdin

No. of shares % of Holding

14th Hoor,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing.
Nesco IT Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway.
Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 063




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

14 Other equity

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Al Reserves and surplus
Securities premium:

At the commencement of the year 5.033.72 5.033.72
Add: Pramium on shares issued durmg the year - -
At the end of the year 5.033.72 50331
Retained carnings:
At the commencemen of the year (2,982.09) (2.351.76)
Add: (Loss) for the year (376.81) (633.21)
Add: Other comprehensive (loss)  mcome (3.13) 2.88
At the end of the year (3.362.03) (2.982.09)
A| Total Reserves and surplus 1.671.69 2.051.63
B| Equity component of compound financial instruments
At the commencement of the year 876.59 876.59
Add: Gan on account of modification m the temns of compound financial instruments 283.66 -
At the end of the year 1.160.25 876.59
Total 2.831.94 2.928.22
Note:

Securities premium:

Secunties pramum 15 used 10 record the pramum on issue of shares. Thereserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

Retained carnings:
Retained eamings represents surplus accumulated earmings of the Company and are available for distribution 1o sharcholders

Equity component of compound financial instruments

This represents equity portion of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) Refer Note 15(b) for details on tams of the instrument

14th Hoor,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing.
Nesco IT Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Weslern Express Highway,
Goregaon {East)
Mumbai - 400 063




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

15 Borrowings

15(a)

15(b)

(a)

(h

)

(d)

(e}

@)

(a)

(b)

(c

Non-current borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured:
Term loans:
- From banks
Rupee term loan (Refir Note A) 9.088.21 9.169.43
Less: Amount disclosed under current maturities of long-term horrowings | Refer note A(d)} (175.92) (115.63)
8.912.29 9.053.80
Working capital term loan (Refer Note B) 191546 2.000.00
Less: Amount disclosed under current matunities of long-tam borrowings (| Refer note Bc) ! (486.50) (125.00)
1.428.96 1.875.00
Unsecured:
10.5% Unsccured i ily convertible del
Liability I} of powund financial {Refer Note C') 4.854.84 4.681.49
4.854.84 4.681.49
Total 15.196.09 15.610.29

Current borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Secured:

Short Term Line Credit {Refer note D) 220.99 185.49

Overdraft (Refer Note E} 630.00 -

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 15a) 662.42 240.63
1.513.41 426.12

Notes:

Term loan and working capital loan from Bank
The lender has granted a term loan facility under the Commion Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 to the Company and three co-borrowers 1.¢. Schiloss Chennai Private Limited, Schloss

Udaipur Private Limited and Schloss Bangalore Private Limited, for a total amounting to Rs. 27.500 millions for the purposc of acquisition (Rs. 25.500 millions) and refurbishment of the hotel
property (Rs. 2.000 millions) fully fungible amount amengst each of the three co-borrowers and the Company’'s hotel property n Delln. The door 10 door tenure of the loan is 15 vears including

moratorium of one vear The loan 1s repayable in 56 quarterly stall 2 31 Docamber 2020, The loan carmics interest rate inked to lender's one vear marginal cost of funds based

lenting rate ("MCLR"), subject 1o annual reset. plus spread ranging from 0.80% to 1.60% based on the extemal credit rating. The Company has available facility of Rs. 8,955 millions and rate of
nterest as on 31 March 202415 8.65% (31 March 2023 8 70% p.a).

With the pradual drawdown of capex in the past three years the mdividual hmits set for Schloss Chennai Private Lumited and Schloss Udaipur Private Limited got exhausted and an application to the
Tender was made for revision in the individual limits. However, due 1o the system limitation a1 the end of the lender. the same cannot be revised and accordingly a cross utihisaton of capex limit was
done during the year. The Company has cross charged the interest expense on such wilisation

Primary security:

The total term loan under the said agreement is securcd against assds of the Company. other co-borrowers and obligators i ¢ Schloss HMA Private Lunited and Leela Palaces and Resonts Linnted
under the Common Facility Agreement. interalia. including:

i. Exclusive charge on the total assets (including mongage of property and  or mongage of leasehold rights mn case of leasehold property, if any) (present & future).

1 Exclusive charge on brand “Leela” pertanmng 10 Hotels. other mtangibles. Goodwill. Intellectual Property (IP). uncalled capital (present and future)

i1 Exclusive charge on all bank accounts including but not limited 0 Escrow account (present & future).

iv. First charge on the total current assets (present and future)

v. Hypothecation of cash flows

Corporate guarantee:
1) of Schloss HMA Private Lumited. fllow subsidiary.
1) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited. fdlow subsidiary.

‘Other security:
i} Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by BSREP 111 India Ballet 1 Pre. Licl.. Holding company. in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure

i} A guarantee of BSREP 111 India Ballet Pte. Limted, mtermeiate Holdmg company, situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 millions, enforceable at Smgapore towards meeting the
shonfall in debt service obligations ull 30 March 2022

iii) A guarantee of BSREP 11 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited.. intermediate holding company of fellow subsidiary company. situated a1 Dubar upto an amount of Rs 3,000 millions, enforceable
al Dubai towards meeting the shortfall in debt service obhgations from 31 March 2022

1) Mortgage on the land situated at Agra owneal by Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited,

Current maturities of long-term borrowings are classified as other curreint borrowings.
Madification in facility terms:

Lender on the request of the management has waived the requirement of testing of finanaial covenants 1ill the end of financial year ended 31 March 2023 with testing 1o be performed on the audited
balance sheet as at 31 March 2024 onwards

Moratorium on interest:
Company has availad the moratorium facility for interest on term loan from the month of March 1o August. 2020 which has been further capitalised mio term loan w.e.{ 01 October 2020 Accordmgly.
interest outstanding till 21 August 2020 amounting to Rs 390,26 millions (31 March 2023: Rs. 390 26 millions) has been capitalized in term loan reported above

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets 1.¢ stock statement. FFRs dc filed by the Company with banks or financial msttutions are in agreement with the hooks of accounts

The lender has gramed a Working capital term Loan (WCTL) Facility under Guarameed Emergency Credit Lme 3.0 (GECL 3.0) facility of Rs. 2000 millions (31 March 2023 2000 millions) on 9
December, 2021 to the Company to sugement net working capital, requiraments to meet operational habilities. The door to door tenure of the loan is 6 years including moratonum of principal of two

years. The loan is repayable m 48 monthly structured installments beginning January 2024, The loan camies nterest rate inked to lender's s1x months marginal cost of funds based lending rate
("MCLR"), plus 1%. subject to amnual reset

Primary security:
Second charge on securities mantioned in Afa) above

Other sceurity:
1) Pladge of 30% shares of the Company held by BSREP 11 India Ballet [ Pre Lid.. Holding company. in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure.

Current maturities of long-tenm borrowmgs arc classified as current borrowings.

Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 06




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions. unless otherwise stared)

1

o

Borrowings (Continued)
Notes (Continued)
C 10.50% unsccured ¢ ily convertible s

(a) Conversion terms:
At the end of the tenure (13 years), each Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCD") of face value of Rs 100 cach will be convertad mio | eguny share of face value of Rs 10 each. CCD can be
convertad dunng the tenure of CCD at the option of the CCD holders. Provided that the CCDs shall automatically stand converted into equity shares upon
(a) Commencement of the corporate insolvancy resolution process of the Company or. any of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreament dated 30 Septanber 2019 executed with the
Tender, or
(b) Conversion of loan nto equity of the Company or any or all of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreament. unless otherwise instructed by the lender as per the Common Facility
Agreement who have provided the loans or who may have acceded 10 the finanang documents

Durmg the vear ended 31 March 2021, the terms of the CCD have been amended 10 provide the option to the issuer to conven the CCD duning the tenure of the CCD. However. the 1ssuer does not

expect to conven the said instrument before the expiry of its term of 15 years at the end of which 1t should stand automancally converted subject 1o the above

(b)  Restriction on payment of interest on CCDs:
As per terms of the Commion Facility Agreement referrad at note 15(A) above. mterest on the CCDs shall be accrued but cannot be pard by the Company until all the obligations under Commen Facility
Agreement are completed or seized

Modification in terms of C:

Convertible D s (CCDs):
Madification in terms of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) The Company entered imo agreement dated 28 September, 2023 wath the CCD holder for alieration of the CCD tenns. As per
the terms. ke CCD holder shall be entitled 1o interest on principal amount at the rate of 10.50% p.a. till March 2029 and henceforth it will be 12.50% p.a. compounded on yearly basis until conversion

Company accounted the modification as substantial modification and recogimsad the gain of Rs. 283 .66 million

D Short Term Credit Line
The lender has granted a working capital facility as per Agreement dated 11 August 2020 1o the Company and three co-borrowers 1.¢ Schloss Chennai Private Limited, Schloss Bangalore Private

Linutedd, Schloss Udaipur Private Linnted, for a total amounting to Rs. 500,00 millions { March 2023 500 millions) to meet the working capital requirement and 1t 15 repavable on demand. The loan

carnes interest rate linked 1 lender'’s one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"), subject to monthly reset. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2024 15 8.65 %
(a)  Primary security:
Exclusive first charge on the entire current assets (Present and Future) of the Borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity)

{b)  Collateral security:
(1) Extension of exclusive charge on the entire fixed assets (including morigage of property and or mongage of lease hold rights in case of lease hold property. if any) of the borrower.
(11} Extension of exclusive charge on all cash flows of the borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity). related to project (ncluding but not limited to ESCROW account and
Dbt Service Resave Accouns) opaned 10 be opened with lender.
(iii} Extension of mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Leda Palaces and Resorts Limited.
{iv) Extension of exclusive charge on brand Ledla., other intangibles, goodwill, 1P relating to the 4 SPVs owned by Schloss HMA Private Limited.
(iv) Extension of pledge of 30% shares of (i) Schloss Chanakya Private Limited held by BSREP 1l India Ballet I Pre. Lid. (i1) Schiloss Udaipur Private Limited held by BSREP 111 India Ballet 11 Pie.
Lid. (iii) Schloss Bangalore Private Limited held by BSREP 111 India Ballet 111 Pte. Lid (iv) Schloss Chemai Private Limited BSREP 111 India Ballet IV Pre. Lid. in favour of the lender for the entire
exposure (TL+WC),

(c)  Corporate guarantee:
i) of Schloss HMA Private Limited, fellow subsidiary.
it} of Leela Palaces and Resonts Linuted, fellow subsidiary
i1} A guarantee of BSREP 111 India Ballgt Holdings (DIFC) Limited, intermodiate Holding company of fellow subsidiary company
at Dubai towards meeting the shortfall i debt service obligations from 31 March 2022

srtuated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 mallions, enforceable

(d)  Thequarterly returns or stalements of current assets 1.¢. stock statement, FFRs ete filed by the Company with banks or financial mstitutions are 1 agreement with the books of accounts

E  Overdraft
The lender has granted overdraft facility as per Agreement dated 28 July 2023 10 the Company against pledged securitics as metioned blow

(a) Interest Rate
The rate of interest as on 31 March 2024 15 750 %

(b)  Pledged securities:
Bank Deposits amounting to R 191.52 Mn (31 March 2023 Nilj has been pledged agamst Overdraft facilines availed duning the year
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

16 Other financial liabilities

16(a) Non-current financial liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security deposits 0.25 0.25
Liability towards environmental clearance (Refer Note 31} - 56.95
Property tax dues payable (Refer Note 35) - 6.11
0.25 63.31

16(b) Current financial liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sceurity deposits 175 1.25
Liability towards environmental clearance ( Refer Note 31) 36.20 -
Employee dues payable 3776 3148
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.77 =
7748 32.73

17 Provisions

17(a) Non-current provisions

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for employec benefits:

- Compensated absances 8.65 4.36

- Gratuity (Refer Note 27) 6.11 4.41
14.76 8.77

17¢b} Current provisions

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits:

- Compensated absences LoD 0.41

- Gratwity (Refer Note 27) 3.30 0.59
4.30 1.00_

18 Trade payables

Particulars { 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entaprises (Refer note below) 1512 16.65
- Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than nucro enterprises and small enterprises

- Related parties (Refer Note 36) 214.38 106.91

- Other vendor payables 82.05 62.68

- Accrued expenses of related parties (Refer Note 26) 2.90 -

- Accruad expenses of other vendors 78.59 90.86
393.04 277.10

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Principal amount due to supplicrs registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 15.12 16.65
as at year end

Iinterest due 1o suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaimng unpaid as al year 0.03 0.01
end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the - 0.92

appointed day during the year
Interest paid. other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act. 10 suppliers registerad under the - -
MSMED Act. beyond the appointed day during the vear
Interest pard, wnder Section 16 of MSMED Act. 1o supphiers registered under the MSMED = 5
Act. bevond the appointed day dunng the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments 0.40 0.01
already made
Further mterest remaming due and payable for earlier years - &

The has dentified which have provided goods and services 1o the Company and which gqualify under the definition of nncro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED

Ad
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

18 Trade payables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024

o] ding for following periods from date of transacti
Particula
R Acried Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
expenses
(i) MSME 3 13.54 1.58 f : 15.12
(ii) Others 81.49 285.46 1.23 9.74 - 377.92
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 81.49 299.00 2.81 9.74 - 393.04
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particula
el Akt Less than I year 1-2years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years Total
expenses
(i) MSME = 16.65 - - - 16.65
(i) Others 90.86 16232 7.27 * = 260.45
(i11) Disputed dues - MSME - = - E - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 90.86 178.97 7.27 - - 277.10
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

19 Other current liabilities

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Contract Liabilny

- Advance from customers
Statwtory dues payable

- Tax deducted at source and egqualisation levy
- Provident fund

- Employecs state insurance

- Goods and serviees tax

- Value added tax

141n Floot,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing.
esco [T Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Weslern Express Highway,
Goregaon (E2st)
Mumba - 400 06

80.51 97.51
108.49 98.13
2,93 2.59
0.07 0.09
3207 3L61
1.95 2.59
226.12 232.52




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

20 Revenue from operations

21

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Sale of products:

Food and beverages revenue 1,052,88 896.04
(b) Sale of services:
Room income 1,773.52 1,302.19
Income from rental and related services - 1.66
Other allied services (laundry income, airport transfers etc.) 133.58 107.91
1,907.10 1.411.76
Total revenue from operations 2,959.98 2,307.80
The entire revenue of the Company is generated in India.
Timing of recognition:
For the year March 31, 2024
Timing of recognition
At a point in time Crver thnte
Food and beverages revenue 1,052.88 -
Room income - 1,773.52
Other allied services (laundry income, airport transfers elc.) 133.58 -
1,186.46 1,773.52
For the vear March 31, 2023
Timing of recognition
At a point in time Over time
Food and beverages revenue 896.04 -
Room income - 1,302.19
Income from rental and related services - 1.66
Other allied services (laundry income, airport transfers etc.) 107.91 -
1,003.94 1,303.85

Contract Balances

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance

obligation is over/ services delivered. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is

satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms/ restaurant/ banquets. Revenue is recognized once the performance

obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage/ provision of banquet services/ other allied services.The Company has recorded

revenue of Rs. 66.40 millions (31 March 2023: Rs. 50.56 millions) against opening balance of contract liabilities.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers

Other income

97.51

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost:

- fixed deposits

- intercorporate deposits

Interest income from others

Liabilities no longer required written back

Net foreign exchange differences

Net gain on account of modification in liability towards environmental clearance
Other income*

*Qther income mainly comprises of scrap sales and rental income

25.59 39.93
103.73 9.49
- 0.51

- 2.75
2.04 1.54

- 9.38
12.39 16.05
143.75 79.65




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

22 Consumption of food and beverages

23

24

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Opening balance of Inventory 42.96 3554

Add: Purchases 224.76 194.05
267.72 229.59

Less: Closing balance of Inventory (55.92) (42.96)
211.80 186.63

Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Salaries and wages 386.41 330.28
Contribution to provident and other funds 17.83 15.17
Gratuity and compensated absences 8.43 9.08
Staff welfare expenses 50.06 37.41

462.73 391.94

Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest expense on:

- term loan* 1,004.87 943.86

- overdraft 22.28 -
- unwinding of provision and liability 417 6.59
- compulsory convertible debentures 556.64 461.29

- others 0.43 -
Other borrowing costs 0.42 2.07
1,588.81 1,413.81

* Includes interest on working capital term loan of Rs. 179.38 millions (31 March 2023 Rs. 170.14 millions).

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 182.49 179.94
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.78 0.16
183.27 180.10
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
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26 Other expenses

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Bacticiars 31 March2024 | 31 March 2023
Consumption of stores and operating supplies 102.39 72.87
Power and fuel 149.48 130.22
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings 33.46 42.42
- plant and machinery 29.08 30.22
- others 42.07 34.56
Insurance 9.12 9.96
Communicafion 4.46 3.48
Travelling and conveyance 18.12 9.80
Guest transportation 14.24 7.06
Printing and stationery 2.64 1.32
Reservation fees 5.52 8.43
Sales and credit card commission 113.42 78.68
Provision for doubtful debts 16.44 -
Business promotion 119.15 74.30
Management fees 190.84 146.21
Legal and professional fees 22.27 36.68
Payment to auditors (Refer Note below) 2,10 1.80
Rates and taxes 80.39 97.88
Bank charges 3.64 0.65
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.05 8.80
Miscellaneous expenses 74.05 52.84

1,033.93 848.18

Payment to auditor’s (excluding taxes)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Eaeil iy 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Statutory audit fees 2.10 1.80
2.10 1.80
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
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27 Employee benefits obligations

{a) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes provident fund contributions 1o defined contritution plans for qualifymg employees. U nder the plan. the Company 15 Tequired to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs 1o fund the benefits. The contributions payable under these plans by
the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions are charged 1o the statement of profit and Toss as they accrue. The amount as an expe
millions).

(h) Defined bencfit plan

towards conmmbution 10 provident fund. employees state insurance and labour welfare fund for the period aggregated to Rs. 17.83 millions (PY amonm Rs 15,17

Gramn
The Company operates post-cmployment defined benefit plan that provides gratwity. The Company has partly funded the defined benefit plan for cligible employees. The scheme provides for lumpsum payment to cligible employees on retirement, death while in
employment or on fermination of employment. of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for cach completed yer of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject 10 a limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. The unfunded portion as well as the amounts in excess of the limit
are to be bome Uy e Company as per policy. Ehgibility occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The present valuc of the definod benefit obligation and current service cost are measuted using the jrojected umit eredit method with actuarial valuations being carmied out at each balance sheet date

The cnployees of HLY Limited were eligible and covered under the existing Group Granmy-com-Life assurance policies adminisiered though HLV Limited. Euployee Group Gramity-cume Life Assurance Scheme. O 16 October 2019, the Company and Totel
Leelaventure Limited has entered into 2 Business Transfer Agreement {"BTA"} for acquisition of Dl hotel operations {the "Hotel") of HLA' Limited. Pursuant to BTA. there has boen complete transfer of employment at the Hotel w the Company and the contimity of
services for every employee at the Hotel was conserved. Pending transfer of plan assets and obligations under the existing policy of HLV' Lunited, Emplovee Group Gratw

Life Assurance Scheme to the new pohey of Schioss Chanakya Prvate Lonnted as a1 e reporting
date, the Company has considéred the fair vafue of plan assets and obligations periaining 1o he wansferred employees at the hotel as accumubied under the existing policics for the purpose of actuarial valuation.

Net benefit obligation as at balance sheet date: Amount (in millions)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligaon 20.09 16.20
Fair valu of plan assets 10.68 11.20
Net assets | (labihty) recognized in balance sheet as provision 9.41) (5,000

Movement in net defined benefit oblization and plan nssets
The fallowing table shows a reconcilianon frorm the opening halances o closing balances

Defined benefit abligation Falr valug of plan assets Net assetliability
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Opening balance 16.20 18.35 1.2 124 (4.99) 6.31}
Sequisition adjustment - - - - - =
{urrent Service Cost 3.7 347 - - {317 347
Past Senvice Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses - - - - - -
Gains or Losses on Non routine seullements - - = 5] 2 ;
Interest Cost Tnterest mcome on plan assets L2 1.33 0.7 4.80 .52} 347
Benefits pasd 349 {8.00) {3.49) (R.00) 5 #
Emplover Contribution = - 7 3 227 237
Actuanal loss’ {gain) arising from change n - - - - - -
Demographic Assumption 5 . - - - -
Financial Assumption - . : ] - -
Experience Adjustment 300 105 - - (3.00) (1.05)
Actuanal (loss) gain on plan asset 2 _ 2 s : 5
Closing balance 20.09 16.20 10.68 1121 9.41) 14.99)
Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss:
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total Senvice Cost 37 347
Net Interest Cost 0.37 0.46
Expense recogmized in the Income Statement 354 393
in other Income;
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
scruanial (gam) | loss for the year on PBUO 300 105
Actuarial (gaim) | loss for the vear on Assel 0.13 3.93)
Actuanial {gam) - loss for the perod 313 (2.88)
Plan Assets:
Plan assets comprise the following:
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Funds Managed by Tnsures 10.68 1n.21
Coverage of plan asset 100% 100%
Actuarial sssumptions were as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.25% 7.39%
Future salary growth B.00% T00%
Mortality rates melusive of provision for disabibiy LALM(2012-14) TALNI2012-14)
Armition at Ages
~Upto 30 Years 2M0%,
- From 31 w44 years 1L00%
- Above 44 vears L%
Sensitivity analysis:
@) mpact of the change n discount rate
Present Value of Obhgation au the end of the period 2009 16.20
Trupact due 10 increase of 0.50% (0.64) (107
Impact due 1o docrease of 0.50° 0.68 117
b) Impact of the change n salary merease
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the penod 2009 16.20
Irmepact duc 10 inceas of 0.50% 067 117
Trupact due 1o decrease of 0.50% (11.64) (1.08)

Sensitwanes due o mortality & withdrawals are net matenal & hence impact of change due o these not caleulated. Sensitnanes as rate of mencse of pensions 1n payment. rte of increase of pensions before retiremen & life expectancy are not applicable:

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

010 | Year 30 {).5¢
1102 Year 203 0.4
2103 Year 131 0.1
2104 Year 1.15 0.3
4105 Year 114 030
5106 Yar 108 0.49
6 Year omwards 9.6% 1380

Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period:

Particulars Amount (in millions)
Service Cost 351
Net Increst Cost 068
Expected Expense for the nexi annual reporting penod 419

€ Compensated absences

The compensated absences (non-funded) for the penod ended 31 March 2024 amounnng 1o Rs. 4 89 mitlions (PY amount Rs. 199 millions) las been recognizsd in the statement of profit and loss. based on actwimal vahiaton camed out using Projected Unit Credit Method
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Notes 1o the Fancial statements for the year endedd 31 March 2024 (Continned)
(AD nrmonnts in Indian rapees in ndllions, wnless otherwise stated)
W Earings per share
Congutation of earnings per shure
Paticulas 31 March 2024 3 March 2023

Lose arinbuitable 10 equity sharholders for basie EPS ) [CEET]
Loss. aitributable o cquity sharchobiers for difuces EPS (376.81) (33.21)
Werghted average mumber of shares 10 be comsidered for competing hassc KPS 110,237 57423076
Wesghted average number of shares (o be comsdered fur conputmng dluied EPS 11,10,23,076 £74,20078

Face value per share "
Hase carmsngs per share (Rupees) 0.9
Iilited earmmgs per share (Rupees) a3y
of carnings msed share
Particlars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2028
Bask EPS
Loss atirsbustable 16 equity shareholders (76,81 (E3121)
7681y 8an.21)

Ditwted EPS
Loss aneiburable to eguit sharcholders (7681 ©.21
Loss attributable to be considened for diluted eps (376.81) (833.21)
W eighted aveuge nunier of hares used as the desomisator
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Weightod average number of cquify shres ssed 95 the Genominator in calcolating basic eamings ] SR
per share
Weighied average number of mandatonly comvenble msnuments (€CDs) (poterisal shares)
imclided in the denmmater in ealeulaiing basic exmings as per pars 13 of Ind. AS 33 s )
Weighted us iber of equity shares. i ity sh d

s S e e R 11,10.200% 5742007

i calcnlating basic and dilnted eamings per shure

29 Segment Reporting

The Company’s Director's as abentficd a5 Chief Opesating Doessuon Makes (CODMY). since they are respoasble for oll the major decssams wilh sespect e the prepar ng. allisnce. merger. scquintion &

om anud executson of bustness plan. prepa

asingls b # 15 “Developing and ranning of hotels”, hence i mecific diclomres hav been made

expansion of Holel Leets Delit, CODM has examined the Company’s performance
A Information abaut products and services
Corpany primarily deals u ooe business samely “Dvelopang snd runcung of hotels® therefore produst Wise reveniue dischostre is ot applcable

om product and geogrephi g,

B. Informmtion abost geogrphical nreas

The Compary provides Inda. Fether there are s located outsde buks

€. Information abont mujar cuctomers
The company does 1ot derive revenue from one custamer which wenld amaunl 10 10 per cenf of more of the epfiy's revense

30 Lemses
The Company has calered 1nto ontracts which qualify for lease a5 per the eriteris speeified under i AS 116 There are 2 revogsition exemptions have been provided 1n id AS 116 for short term leases and lom valus leases. The contracts satered by the campany are

2 morshs. Menee, they qualify the cxernpiien eritenia for short term lease. For the rest of the contracts. the Cormars has the opion to exst the lease by g1y

ces arud Fe the term of less than

ex by the managemen! they

pmanly fer the pumpese of sccommod
any sgnificant penaly Basad en cxpested s of sich Jeased prem

iens of el

culd qusl

fioe short Lerm lease cxemption,. Hence. e lease rentals har dircetly heen charged to the stsement of P&T

31 Liability for emvimnmental clearunce
Lishility 1owards envircamental cleatance pertoins 1o expenses 1o be incurred by the Company. for the remediation pis
et ablained n the past. The tolal expenses o be incied by millscrs. The breskup of the ameta 16 be

Environmental Clessance ("EC") from the Ministry of Environment and Farests ("MOEF™) for the erhanced tmillup area tor which EC was

uered by the Camgany o

Company is R 109 0

Farticubrs Amount
e R e =) . 36,07
Natural resource and comenumsiy resetsce ssgmeniation plin a8
Activitiento be eompleted under CER after the accondimee of et immental cluarance 625
Ecology and biodiversity conservation 10 AsolaBhatt Sonctuary and Okhla Bied Sanctuary 200
10907
Thr sand amnetest 5 10 be speen by the Company over a period of 3
Farticalrs 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Financisl year 20 2445 Taas
Fenancisl yesr 202 2380 280
Frnancial year 6112 6112
.07 1000

= The Company has obiained extension (5 cument year 10 spend the pending amourn of Rs 3620 mullicas 35 appearing in Xate 160 nll November 3

32 Net debit reconciliation

# i ¢ and closng bal shocl fr habalies and Finsnual assets amseng from financing acirvises for mgvemment i the siotemen of cash flow are gven bk
Particalan Currest Borrowings Nou-Curreat Borrowiags
Baknce as ul 1 Aprl 2023 12612 18610.29
Proceeds for the vear (inshusive of sceuity premuum compenert) 66550 A
Repayments for the year - (165.75)
Bilcrest cosi forthe year (inclseve of Lt vabiaiaon comporen | 155380
Eccest pard for the year - (112557
Modification gain on CCT2 - (20.66)
Lesm: Cash and cash equvalents L 233
Balance as ot 31 March 2024 [ 15566,
32 Financis! i Fuir vahues and is
Nute 3%.1: Accounting classification and fair values

s Jevelsn the U vakie Ierarchy. are preserted below 1 does nat el the {are vabue wlermateon for finanersl assets and finsncial labilities a0t messured a1 fnr vabue o the

Carmyang amourts and fais values of financsal 15818 aad financsal
CarTying amownt 1 8 reason tion of faif vaiue

Asat 31 March 2024

Carrying ammunt Fair valut.
Farticulars FVTRL Amartised eost FYTOCT Total Level 1 Lewi2 Level 3 Total
Trade r . 9343 + 9143 - -
Laans - 120,00 : 205, - -
Cash and cash equivaleats - 51 + sam - -
Bank halances ofher than cash and cash equinalents " 19152 . 191.52 = -
Other Brancial assets - 44691 - 44601 - -
5 199010 = 199019 2 =
Bororangs (mcluding current matizity ) " 16,708.50 - 1670950 . .
Trade payables 5 39304 - 203,04 - -
Oftes Fnancial abiikes . T 5 7.7 = -
- 1718027 - 17,150, - B 1708027

T T e

SOLIN




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
{All amsounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

33 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (Continued):
As at 31 March 2023

Carrying smount Falr value

Particalars FVTPL Amortised cast FYTOCT Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Trade receivables - 106.81 - 106.81 - - 106.81 106.81
Loans - 60000 - 600.00 - - 60000 600.00
Cashand cash oquivalents - 289.20 - 289.20 - - 289.20 289.20
Hank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 118.28 - 11828 = - 118.28
Other financial assets - 169.72 - 169.72 - - 169.72

- 1.284.01 - 128401 E = 128401

| lisilitics:

Borrow ings (including curment maturities) - 16,036.41 - 16.036.41 - - 16,036.41 1603641
Trade payables - 277.09 - 277.08 - - 27709 77.09
Other finncial liabilines - 96.04 - 96.04 - - 96.04

= 16.409.54 - 16.409.54 - - 16,409.54

Note 33.2: Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Conpany™s business activities expose it to markel risk. liquidity risk and credst risk. The man lops and monitars. the Company’s nsk management policies. The key nisks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Board of directors of e Company
The Company's risk management policies are established 10 sdentify and amalysc the nsks faced by the Company, 10 set appropnate risk limits and 1o eontrol and monitor risks and adherence fo s,
Finance team and experts of respective business divisions provides assurance that the Company's financial nisk actviuses an: governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial nsks are sdéntified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's
policies and nsk objectives. The activaties are desigoed to:

~protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks

-maintain market isks within aceepiable parameters. wiile optimising returns; and

~pratect the Company s financial mvesments. while maximising returns.

This note explains the sources of risk which the eatity is exposed to and how the entity manages the isk

A) Credit risk
Credit nsk 1 the nsk tat a consterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrament or customer contract. leading 1o a financial loss. Credit sk anses from made recenvables. cash and cash equivalents. bank batance. fixed deposits with banks. security deposits
and other financal asscts,

The Company is exposed 10 credit risk on its financial assets. which comprise cash and cash equivalents. bank deposits, trade receivables. security deposits and other recenables. The exposure (o credil isks arises from the potential [ailure of counterparties o meet their
obligations. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date: 15 the camying amount of the financial instraments,

With respect 1o other financial assets namely secuity deposits and other eceivables., the maximum exposure o eredit risk 15 the camying amount of these classes of financial assets presented in the Balance Shet. These are actively momiored and confirmed by the Company
Currently. the eredit risk arising from such security deposits and other receivables is evaluated 1o be mimatenial for the Company

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents. deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally Tow as the said deposits hav heen made with the banks/firancial institutions. who have been assigned high credit rating by intemational and domestic rating agencies.

Trade receivables
The Company”s exposure to credit sk is influenced mainly by the individual characienstics of cach customer and the peography m which t operates. Credit sk 1s managed through credit approvals and

v monitoring th of customers to which

the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of bustness. The Company operates only in one geographical location 1., n India. Considering the industry in which the compay s operating. there is no major king outstanding recenables
The Company has nsed & practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables hased on a provision matrix. The provision matrix tkes o account historical crdit loss expenence and adpusied for forwardlooking formation. The
canrying amounts of rade receivables as disclosed in nate sumber 10 rupresent the maximem eredit risk exposure

The ageing of trade receivables that are past due and expected credit lass are given below

Year 1 to 60 days 61 10 120 days 120 to 180 days Above 180 days Gross receivable Impairment Net receivable
As at 31 March 2024 7897 10,40 4.08 2443 17.88 2345 94.43
As ut 31 March 2023 T4.85 18.48 398 16.51 113.82 701 106.82

The movement in loss allowance in respect of rade recenables 15 as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As 2t 31 March 2023
Opemng 701 975
Loss allowance recognised 16.44 0.76
Amounts written off - 351
Closing 2345 7.01
B) Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk ts the risk that the Company may not be able 10 meet s present and future cash and collawersl obligations without incurring unascceptable losses. The Company's obseetive s 10, atall imes matniain optimum levels of liquidity 10 meet its cash and collateral
In addition. processes and poli 1o such risks are overseen by senor management,

The Compary believes that the working capital 1s sufficient 1o meet 1is current requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by naitaimng adequate reserves. banking facilivies and reserve bomow ing facilities, by contnuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
florws, and by matehing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Also refer note on going concem assessment (Refer Note 2.3). Accordingly. o liquidity risk is perceived

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial Habilities a1 the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.

Contractual cash flows

As ut 31 March 2024 Carrying values

12 months 12 years 25 years More thun § years
Non-derivative financial liabilitics:
Non-cutrent borrowings (including current maturities) 15858.51 162194 1,648.41 6523.25 25.295.56
Current borow mgs 850.99 85099 - - -
Trade payables 393.03 393.03 - - -
Otber financial liabilies (ncluding current matrities) 7173 7748 0.25 - -
17, 294344 1.648.66 6.523.25 25.295.56
e 31 Mareh 2023 » ; Contractual cash flaws
r 311 vin,
a a arrying values 0-12 months 1-2 years 2.5 years More than 5 years
Non-derivative financial lisbilities:
Non-current borrowings (including curment manurities) 15,850.92 240.63 67592 me 6,958,94
Current borrowings 185.49 18549 - - =
Trade payables 27710 27710 - - -
Other financial hatil including curren! maturities) 96.04 R 63.31 - =
16.409.55 73595 739.23 333349 6.958.94

€) Market risk
Foreign cumency risk refers to the nisk diat the fair value or futune cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign cumency rates. The Company makes payments miemanonally and 1 exposed to foreagn exchange nisk arisng from foreign
currency purchases, primarily with respect o USD and GBP. Foregn exchange sk anises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that 1s not the Comany”’s functional currency (Rs.) at the year end. The Company's exposure to forcign currency risk,

expressed m Rs., 1 grven m the table below, The amaounts represent only the financial assets and Tabilites that are denominated i currencies other than the funcnonal currency of the Company

Currency risk:
The currencaes 1 which the transactions are prmarily denominaled are Indian Rupees. The Company 15 exposed to curency risk n respect of trnsactions m foreign currency. The transactions of the Company primanily n foreign currency are miport of stores and operating
supplies. pavment of rovalty and other expenses. There are no foreign currency revense, The Company's expasure to fi v risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rupees, are as follow

Year USD Eure
As ut 31 March 2024 - £ -
As at 31 March 2023 - = -

The Company have purchased forward contracts o hedge its foreign curmency risk. The Company has nat formally designated these forward contracts against foreign currency payables,

The following table presents the ontstandiag position and fair value of various foreign curmency dernvatrve financial instrumients

As at Mareh 31, 2024 As at March 31. 2023
Currency pair Average exchange rate Notional value Fair value Average exchange rate | Notional value Fair valne
(Rs. in million) (Rs. in million)
LSD/Rs 8371 1753 - 8279 2.2 -
EURRs 91.09 0.10 - 10270 043 -
GBPRs 10575 0.4% - 90.69 144 -
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees in millions, unless otherwise stuted )

35 Contingent labilities and commitments

(s) Contingent libilities

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Clams against the Comuny ot ackiow ledged as debis | Refer note (1) below ! 292970 282810
Disputed statutory liabilities {refer note (1) below | 1L16 208
294056 283617
Notes:
(i) The breaknp of ¢laims against the Comyany nol acknow ledged as debis 1 as under
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
FAR - New Delhi Mumcipal Council (TNDMC™) {Refer note (a) below | 292862 282523
Proceeding under The Minimum Wages Act. 194% Refer note (b) below ! 108 108
Proceedings for non-refind of amount on cancellation of booking {Refer note (¢) below . 179
293970 282810

{a) HLV Limited {erstwhile owner) against the demand of Rs. 1.527.49 millions towards FAR charges depostted only Rs 954 68 millons and the balance amount of Rs. 57281 milhons was disputed. HLV Limted
{erstwhile owner) filed a wnt petition hefore the Delhi High Coun. inter aha for setting aside/quashing the final recovery notice praying that the Delln hotel be classified as fallmg 1 the South Zone for e purpose of
payment of charges for additonal FAR and for grant of 25% concession of Zonal Average Auchon Rate ("ZAAR"). The matter is pending before the Courl. The amount of contingent liability presented above is inclusive of
interest Gl balance sheet date

(b} In the complatnt under e Minimum Wages Act. 1948 the order was 1ssued agamst HL\ Limited (ersowhile owner) in Sepiember 2018 directing 10 pay Rs. 1,05 millions. The order was challenged by HLV Limited
{erstwhile owner) before Hor'ble High Court of judicature at Delhs, The matier s pending before the High Coun.

(€} In the recovery proceedings fiked for non refund of amount on cancellation of baoking by @ customer against LA Limited (erstwhile owner). praying for a decree for a sum of Rs 125 millions and future interest
thereupon at the rate of 18% per amum, from the date of the fling of the present swi ull 1t's realization. The matter has been closed m favour of the company m the current year.

(1) The breakup of disputed stanuory liabilities 15 as under-

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Department in appeak,

Service tax * 1L16 808
1116 508

* Senvice tax department tas levied senvice tax on complmentary services during the penod from Juby 2012 1o June 2017, The matter 15 curently pending before CESTAT. Against this R0 37 nullions is paid under

rotest.

(b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaiming to be executed on aceount of purchase of propenty. plant and equipment and not provided for (et of advances) amaunts o Rs. 20.90 milhons (31 March 2

Bs 0.4% nulhions),

141h Hoor,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing.
Nesco IT Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway.
Goregaen (East)
Mumbai - 400 3




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
ar ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
inless otherwise stated)

Nates to the financial statements for th
(All amounts in Indisan rupees in millios

36 Related party disclosures
() Names of related parties

(i) Tolding company
BSREP [I India Ballet 1 Pte. 1td.. Holding company

Key managerial personnel
Mr. Anupam Das Gupta, General Manager (w.e 11 January 2021)
Mr Vijaypal Singh. Financial Controller (w e f 1 November 2021 till 9 December 2022)
Mz Prem Pareck. Director of Finance (w e '] December 2022)
Ms_ Anuja Dubey, Company Seeretary (Til 10 March 2023)
Mr. Sougata Kundu, Director (w ¢ F22 Seprember 2023)

Fellow subsidiarics
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited
Schloss HMA Private Limited
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Schloss Chennan Private Limited
Schloss Udarpur Pivate Limited
Schloss Gandhinagar Pnvate Lumted
Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited
Moonburg Power Private Limited (w ¢ £29 March 2023)
Schloss Tadoba Private Lunited (w.e. £ 16 August 2022)
Brookprop Property Management Services Pvi Lid (Formerly Brookprop Management Senvices Pv Lid"y
Arliga Indha Office Parks Private Limiied
Witwicky One Private Limited
Summitt Diguel Infrastructure Pt Lid

(b} Transactions during the year/period (Rupees in millions)

it For the year ended 31 March  For the year ended 31 Mareh
2024 2023

Management fees expense

Schloss HMA Private Limited 190.84 146.21

Reimbursement of expenses paid to / (received from)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 3141 19.37

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.39 0.24

Schloss Udarpur Pnivate Limited 3.94 831

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 2.72 11.78

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited - .05

Luls: Palace Resort Private Limited 7.97 4.38

Interest income on eapex limit utilisation (refer note 15A)

Schioss Chennai Private Limited 20.29 8.2

Schloss Udaipur Prvate Limited 816 2.37

Interest on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

BSREP IIT India Ballet I Pte. Lid 556.64 613.03

Iuter corporate deposit given

Schioss Bangalore Private Limited 605.00 =

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited 50.50 =

Schloss HMA Private Limited = 600,00

Inter corporate deposit settlement

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limiled (50.50) -

Schloss Bangalore Private Lunited - 117.94

Interest expense/(income) on inter corporate deposit

Schloss HMA Private Limited (75.21) .21y

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited (1.33)

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (27.19) 9.29)

Revenue

Arhiga India Office Parks Private Limited 0.28 -

Brookprop Propenty Management Services Pt Lid (Formerly Brookprop Management Services Pvi Ltd') 2.90 -

Witwicky One Privaic Limited 001 -

Other Income =

Summint Digite] Infrastrueture Pt Lid 105 0.76

Managerial remuncration *

Short term employee benefits

Mr. Anupam Das Gupta 17.65 16.08

Mr. Vijaypal Singh - 209

Mr. Prem Pareck 364 1.20

Ms Anuga Dubey** = 0.90

* Managenial remuneration excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences. since these are provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole
** The financial statements have not been authenticated by a whole time secretary as required under Section 134 of the Act. The Company s whole tme seeretary left the organization e £ 10 March 2023 and
the Company 1s currently in the process of appomting a whole tine secretary as required under Section 203 the Act




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont|
(All amounts in Indian rupees in mil

unless otherwise stated)

36 Related party disclosures (Continued)

(¢) Outstanding balances {Rupees in millions
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Trade payables (Including accruals)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 203.49 142.14
Schloss Cheanai Private Limited 1.82 2
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 597 %
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 7.00 501

Trade receivable

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited 0.04 012
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.80 0.28
Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 0.90
Summitt Digite] Infastructure Pyt Lid 0.07 0.03
Brookprop Propery Management Serviees Pt Ltd (Formerly Brookprop Managemient Services Pt Ltd') 320 -

Reimbursement (receivable)payable
Schloss HMA Private Limited = (15.77)
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited & (1L67)

Inter corporate deposit given
Schioss Bangalore Private Limited 605.00 "
Schioss HMA Private Lunited 600,00 600,00

Iuterest Receivable on Tnter corporate deposit

Schioss Bangalore Private Limited 2447 -
Lexla Palaces and Resorts Limited 1.20 B
Schioss HMA Private Limited 67.87 018

Interest acerued but not due on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
BSREF 11l India Ballet 1 Pte Lid 1.567.04 999.46

10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures (at Instrument’s issue value)
BSREP 11 India Ballet I Pie. Lid 5.360.00 5,360.00

{d) Corporate guarantec
Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited and the itermediate holding company 1.¢. BSREP 11 India Ballet Pie Lid have given corporate
puarantee and other related parties also created eharge over their total assets for the term loan Geility availed by the company

{e) Other Seeurity
Company’s fellow subsidiaries, i.c Leela Palace Resorts Limited have extended the mortgage on the land for the term loan availed by the Company.
Further, there s pladge of 30 shares of the Company held by BSREP 111 India Ballet I Pte. 11d., Holding company. in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure.

() Names of Related parties where control exists
BSREP 11 India Ballet 1 Ple. Lid. ( Holding Company), BSREP 111 India Ballet Pre. Ltd., Intermediate Holding Company and Brook field Corporation (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management In )
(Ultimate controlling party)

(£) All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable m cash. All ransactions were made on normal commereial tems and conditions and at market rates.
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